Borough Council of

R
King’s Lynn & & ﬁ"“-f
West Norfolk } ‘f {

Cabinet Scrutiny
Committee

Agenda

Thursday, 22nd October, 2015
at 6.00 pm

in the

Committee Suite
King’s Court
Chapel Street
King’s Lynn
PE30 1EX



IN 4\
W TRAN

communication for all

If you require parts of this document in another language, large print, audio, Braille or any alternative
format please contact the Council Information Centre on 01553 616200 and we will do our best to

help.

LATVIAN
Ja Jums nepiecieSamas dalas no S7 dokumenta citd valoda, lield druka, audio, Braila raksta vai
alternativa formata, IGdzu, sazinieties ar Padomes informacijas centru (Council Information Centre) pa

01553 616200 un més centisimies Jums palidzét.

RUSSIAN
Ecnu Bam Hy>XHbl YacTu 3TOro JOKYMEHTA Ha APYroM s3blke, KPYMHbIM LWpUdTOM, WwpudTom Bpanns,
B ayauo- unu nHom copmate, obpawantecb B MHdopmaumoHHbin LieHTp CoseTta no Ten.: 01553

616200, n Mbl nocTapaemcsi BaM NOMOYb.

LITHUANIAN
Jei pageidaujate tam tikros Sio dokumento dalies kita kalba, dideliu Sriftu, Brailio rastu, kitu formatu ar
norite uzsisakyti garso jradg, susisiekite su Savivaldybés informacijos centru (Council Information

Centre) telefonu 01553 616200 ir mes pasistengsime jums kiek jmanoma padéti.

POLISH

Jesli pragng Panstwo otrzymac¢ fragmenty niniejszego dokumentu w innym jezyku, w duzym druku, w
formie nagrania audio, alfabetem Braille’a lub w jakimkolwiek innym alternatywnym formacie, prosimy
o kontakt z Centrum Informacji Rady pod numerem 01553 616200, zas my zrobimy, co mozemy, by

Panstwu pomac.

PORTUGUESE
Se necessitar de partes deste documento em outro idioma, impressdo grande, audio, Braille ou
qualquer outro formato alternativo, por favor contacte o Centro de Informagdes do Municipio pelo

01553 616200, e faremos o nosso melhor para ajudar.



‘T.Q
Borough Council of =

King’s Lynn & % B 'V
West Norfolk } ‘; {

King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200

Fax: 01553 691663

Wednesday 14" October, 2015

Dear Member

Cabinet Scrutiny Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Committee which will be
held on Thursday, 22nd October, 2015 at 6.00 pm in the Committee Suite, King's
Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX to discuss the business
shown below.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence

To receive any apologies for absence.
2. Minutes (Pages 6 - 12)
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting.

3. Urgent Business under Standing Order 7

To consider any business, which by reason of special circumstances, the
Chairman proposes to accept as urgent under Section 100(b)(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4, Declarations of Interest

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared. A
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it
relates. If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the member should
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.



These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply
observing the meeting from the public seating area.

Members Present Pursuant to Standing Order 34

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the
Chairman of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard
before the meeting commences. Any Member attending the meeting under
Standing Order 34 will only be permitted to speak on those items which have
been previously notified to the Chairman.

Chairman's Correspondence

Response to Previous Committee Recommendations

To receive comments, and recommendations from other Council bodies, and
any responses subsequent to recommendations, which this Committee has
previously made. Some of the relevant Council bodies may meet after
dispatch of the agenda.

Matters called in Pursuant to Standing Order 12

Scrutiny of Cabinet Decisions

Cabinet Decisions

Items from the Cabinet agenda from 6t October 2015 to be scrutinised are as
follows:

a) Devolution (Pages 13 - 32)

10.

To:

Date of next meeting

The next meeting of the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee is scheduled to take
place on Thursday19th November 2015 at 6.00pm in the Committee Suite,
King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk.

Cabinet Scrutiny Committee: J Collop, P Gidney, | Gourlay, C Kittow, P Kunes,
Mrs K Mellish and T Wing-Pentelow

Portfolio Holders:

Councillor N Daubney, Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Resources.

Management Team Representatives:

Debbie Gates, Executive Director Head of Central & Community Services



Ray Harding, Chief Executive

Executive Directors
Press



Agenda Item 2 o

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

CABINET SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes from the Meeting of the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee held on
Thursday, 17th September, 2015 at 6.00 pm in the Committee Suite, King's

Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn

PRESENT: Councillor

Councillors R Blunt, Mrs J Collingham, P Gidney, | Gourlay, C Joyce, C Kittow,

Mrs K Mellish and T Wing-Pentelow

An apology for absence was received from Councillor J Collop and P Kunes

CSC:35

CSC:36

CSC:37

CSC:38

CSC:39

CSC:40

CSC:41

CSC:42

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 August 2015
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

URGENT BUSINESS UNDER STANDING ORDER 7

None

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING

RESOLVED: That Councillor C Kittow be appointed as Vice-Chairman
for the Meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None

MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34

Councillor G McGuinness attended under Standing Order 34 for
consideration of the Cabinet Agenda items 9 a, b and c.

CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE

None

RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

None

MATTERS CALLED IN PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 12




CSC:43

270

None

SCRUTINY OF CABINET REPORT - 2016/17 DRAFT COUNCIL TAX

SUPPORT SCHEME FOR CONSULTATION

The Chairman, Councillor Gourlay, had requested that this item should
feature on the Agenda.

Under Standing Order 34, Councillor G McGuinness referred to the fact
that when the Scheme had come through Cabinet the previous year he
had referred to a number of questions asked about the financial impact
of the scheme in relation to the “bedroom tax”. He asked if there was
enough data to carry out an impact analysis to see if there were any
particularly hard hit groups.

The Benefits Manager explained that there was not specific data on
types of groups and the effects on those groups because each case
was looked at on its merits, and if someone was affected by multiple
hits on their benefits for example those who weren’t pensioners or with
small children they would often be the recipient of the discretionary
scheme. An applicant was only refused once all of someone’s income
and outgoings had been looked at in detail and deemed ineligible for
the scheme.

Councillor McGuinness asked if there was an opportunity to carry out
an impact analysis on this. The Benefits Manager responded that a
form of analysis could be carried out but it would be inconclusive
because of the variety of different levels of claims and awards.

Councillor Gourlay referred to the newspaper report on the level of
bailiff use by the Borough Council at 3,800 incidents, he asked if the
level was this high due to the non payment of Council Tax following the
changes to the scheme. The Benefits Manager responded that the
high usage of the enforcement was for a number of reasons, and would
not be reflective of the actual usage for King’s Lynn and West Norfolk
only because the Borough carried out the car parking and its
enforcement for a number of other Councils so their figures would
appear less and ours higher.

Councillor Gourlay asked what was being done in the consultation
process to get the level of participation in the consultation up on
previous years. The Benefits Manager explained that she had carried
out considerable consultation the previous year including roadshows to
different sites, mail shots etc with a very limited response.

Councillor Daubney responded that the response reflected the national
picture, but he felt that the most effective thing that could be done was
to keep the level of Council Tax low as the Council had been doing.



271

Councillor Gourlay referred to the assumption that the self- employed
would be assumed to be earning the minimum wage for benefits
purposes over the last 2 years which was often not the case. He asked
why that stance had been taken. The Benefits Manager responded
that it had been brought in during the first year of the Scheme to link
with the requirements of Universal Credit. She explained that some
self-employed claimed tax credits etc and when they initially started in
business were given a start up period of 6 months to enable the
income received to build over that time. The income level would be
reviewed after the 6 months.

Councillor Gourlay asked if the things taken into account for the self
employed included an element of advertising for the new business, to
which it was confirmed that it did.

Councillor McGuinness referred to the reference to the cost of the
Council Tax Scheme in 6.4 of the report and asked if it was the national
scheme for Council Tax customers. The Benefits Manager responded
that the term referred to the old scheme and those protected by it, as
there was no national scheme for the working age. She agreed to look
at the terminology used.

Councillor McGuinness referred to 6.5 of the report and the level of
deficit for the County and Borough and Parishes compared to the
previous year. He asked what the difference in the scheme was on the
previous year and whether it would affect all precepting authorities
equally. The Benefits Manager responded that it was due to the
caseload change which affected the levels of impact on the precepting
authority. She did not have the detail of the previous years figures to
hand and agreed to look at the differences on two years and provide
the figures from the previous year to Councillor McGuinness.

Councillor Joyce drew attention to the fact that the administration of the
discretionary hardship scheme fell to the Borough Council to fund, he
asked what was the average of pass and fails for the assessments for
the relief. The Benefits Manager explained that there was not a
meaningful average because the average figure worked out on
numbers of cases and levels did not give a true reflection. Councillor
Daubney considered that any figure worked out in this way would
potentially be meaningless because there wasn’t a norm, particularly
as some people had to take into account the costs of care and support
etc.

Councillor Gourlay made reference to those Councils who were not
operating the Council Tax Support Scheme, and asked if the Council
Tax Payers in the Borough were paying more because of it. He
suggested that some things could be given up in the Council’s budget
to fund it. Councillor Daubney responded that the Council’s budgets
were balanced against no increase in Council Tax, whereas those
authorities not operating a scheme were loading large costs against
those people who were paying Council Tax.



CSC:44

272

With regard to the lack of response from the County Council on the
scheme which had been sent out for consultation, the Chief Executive
informed Members that he had raised it with the Chief Executive of the
County Council who she assured would give a response.

Councillor Joyce asked if the Council or the Government picked up the
tab for the protection of pensioners in the scheme. Councillor Daubney
explained that the Government Policy was that pensioners would be
protected, which brought a cost, for which there was a cost which had
to be absorbed by the Council and its adopted scheme.

Councillor McGuinness asked if the Council was required to have the
discretionary fund, to which he was informed that whilst the local
authority had a discretion to have one, but if one was not in place the
Council could be taken to a tribunal.

As suggested by Councillor McGuinness, Councillor Gourlay moved
that full impact analysis be carried out on the previous schemes.
Councillor Collingham asked what benefit requiring officers to carry out
the additional work would bring any benefit to the scheme. On being
put to the vote the proposal was lost.

CABINET REPORT - NAR OUSE BUSINESS PARK ENTERPRISE
ZONE

This item had been brought to the Committee at the request of the
Chairman, Councillor Gourlay.

Councillor Gourlay made reference to the fact that the report and
proposal was working with the New Anglia LEP, and commented that
he believed the Council was also working with the Greater Cambridge
& Greater Peterborough LEP, he asked why they were not included in
this proposal. Councillor Daubney confirmed that the Council was
working with both LEPs because of the links with both sides of the
Borough, but this request had come from the New Anglia LEP.

Councillor Gourlay asked why when the Council was working in the
scientific corridor from Cambridge the proposal was for “heavy industry
base”. Councillor Daubney responded that King’s Lynn and its
businesses were growing and the Enterprise Zone was particularly for
“advanced engineering”, rather than heavy engineering. He drew
attention to the fact that the advanced engineering element of business
inward enquiries for the Borough comprised over 60% of the enquiries
made, and made up a large amount of the business in the Borough
with companies such as BaE, Williams Refrigeration and Bespak, with
the Enterprise Zone forming a small element of it. He further explained
that the biggest challenge for the Borough was to retain that industry in
West Norfolk by maintaining and improving on skills levels and training
in the Borough.



CSC:45

273

Under Standing Order 34, Councillor McGuinness asked if there was a
danger that a company would move from an existing site in the
Borough for the attractive business rates in the enterprise zone, leaving
a vacuum from where they moved. Councillor Daubney confirmed this
was a potential situation which had been raised as a potential issue,
but a judgement had to be made.

Councillor Joyce asked if any investigation had been undertaken with
the pharmaceutical industry due to the need for large amounts of sugar
in their industry and the proximity of the sugar beet factory. He also
asked why the Broadband for the area was limited to 100 megabites.
Councillor Daubney shared frustrations around the digital infrastructure
and its limitations, but explained that he had just signed off an initiative
with the County Council to help towards this, he acknowledged that
there was still more to do.

Councillor McGuinness asked if the level of enquiries set out in the
report were distinct enquiries or several from the same companies. It
was confirmed that they were distinct.

Councillor Gourlay asked if the Council had the £3m required to pay for
the project, to which Councillor Daubney explained that the Council
had a requirement to make the land fir for purpose, and it would access
funding available to make it happen. The Chief Executive further
explained that the NORA development had stalled due to the level of
funding required to install the infrastructure on the site up front of
selling plots to companies, and the Enterprise Status would enable to
LEP to borrow to fund the work against future income. The situation
with the 5 years of no Business Rates was attractive to businesses.

Councillor McGuinness asked if a bridge would be installed over the
railway track from South Lynn which he believed had been discussed
at the time of the Tesco development. Councillor Daubney recalled
some discussion on the matter some time ago, but was not aware if
this had been an undertaking or requirement.

Councillor Collingham expressed delight that the profile of the industry
was as set out in the report as she considered that a lean to the
science park would not necessarily lead to sustainable jobs in
companies that would stay in the area.

CABINET REPORT - SITE ALLOCATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT POLICIES PLAN - RESPONSES TO INSPECTORS
REQUEST FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

The item had been brought to the Committee at the request of the
Chairman Councillor Gourlay.

10



274

Councillor Joyce made reference to the discussion he had held with the
LDF Manager and p54 of the report which set out the levels of houses
which would be required. He asked if the minimum level of 3500 was
needed or if it was the 7 -7500 target required.

The LDF Manager explained that it was the 7-7500 figure, dependent
on the sites which were considered as part of King’s Lynn. The overall
total of 16500 properties would be required for the total period of time,
9000 of which had already been completed.

Councillor Gourlay asked how the targets set out in the Plan had been
decided upon, and who would live in the additional properties. The
LDF Manager explained that the figures had been derived from
analysis from the Core Strategy, and from population increase
forecasts. There were also changes in family structures, with more
homes needed to cope with the current population, with the current
demand of 660-690 new units pa.

Under Standing Order 34, Councillor McGuinness asked why housing
growth was not being built upwards as in Cambridge, rather than
outwards. The LDF Manager responded that there were different
markets operating in the 2 geographical areas, and the properties were
developed to match to needs of the population, the land values and the
construction costs of the build type. He undertook to provide Councillor
McGuinness with some further information on the issue.

Councillor Joyce made reference to the point he raised at the Cabinet
meeting on the consistency of advice received from other agencies
when planning consents were sought on flood plains. He commented
on the fact that the Planning Inspector had raised the issue of flood risk
but referred to the level of flood risk being shown by the Environment
Agency for a site adjacent to the river as opposed to one further inland.
He asked how confident the Council was in the advice received from
them or the County Council. The LDF Manager responded that the
confidence was that neither bodies had raised strategic objections to
the Plan.

The LDF Manager reminded Members that the area was growing and it
was important to make use of the land, as being in a flood plain did not
preclude development, but required a flood risk assessment to be
undertaken and if those mitigation measures were found to be
acceptable by the Environment Agency it was possible to build.

Councillor Gourlay made reference to a presentation received some
years before at a Panel meeting that the risk of King’'s Lynn flooding
was a 1 in 150 year episode. Councillor Gidney commented that the
latest Environment Agency flood breach modelling was awaited, but it
was necessary to go with the advice of the experts.

Councillor Joyce made further reference to the point he had made in
the Cabinet meeting on some schools being over subscribed, The LDF

11



275

Manager responded that there was not the capacity in all schools, but
they would include the increase in school places where required.

Councillor McGuinness commented that in the days of the PCT, they
were consulted over the provision of healthcare for the future. He
asked if this was still taking place with the new CCG. The LDF
Manager confirmed that liaison and advice had taken place on the
public health requirements to 2026.

Following a question on the issue of the 5 year land supply, the
Executive Director, G Hall explained the situation which was not part of
this report. Councillor Gourlay asked if when the report and plan was
adopted developers would be able to develop elsewhere than those
sites in the Plan, to which the Executive Director explained that the
adoption of the Plan didn’t mean that the Inspectorate considered there
was a 5 year land supply, as in other areas their adopted Local Plan
was only 2 months old and they were found not to have the 5 year
supply. The figures set out in the local Plan were not maximum figures
and the onus was on the Council to find the sites for housing.

Councillor Joyce asked what the acreage was in King’s Lynn for people
to potentially walk a dog, and whether that had been taken into account
in the space required for the town. The LDF Manager undertook to
send him the acreage figure, and confirmed that the green
infrastructure with the habitat requirements etc were being taken into
account as part of the Cabinet report.

Councillor Blunt asked if the fact that the windfall developments were to
be included in the numbers would this be attributed back to the
parishes. The LDF Manager reported that every completion was taken
into account, and the Inspector had referred to flexibility in windfall
sites, specific numbers for which wouldn’'t be attributed to specific
parishes. Councillor Blunt asked why the parishes had not been
informed of the potential levels previously as they could potentially be
significant in some parishes, to which the LDF Manager responded that
it was not how the Government had asked for the information to be
brought forward.

CSC:46 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next scheduled meeting was 22 October 2015.

The meeting closed at 7.30 pm

12



Agenda Item 9a

REPORT TO CABINET

Open Would any decisions proposed :
Any especially Be entirely within Cabinet’s powers to decide  YES
affected Discretionary / Need to be recommendations to Council NO
Wards

Is it a Key Decision NO
Lead Member: ClIr Nick Daubney Other Cabinet Members consulted:

E-mail: clir.nick.daubney@west-norfolk.gov.uk Other Members consulted:

Lead Officer: Ray Harding Other Officers consulted:

E-mail: ray.harding@west-norfolk.gov.uk Management Team and Duncan Hall

Direct Dial:01553 616245

Financial Policy/Personnel Statutory Equal Impact Risk Management
Implications Implications Implications Assessment Implications

NO YES YES NO NO

Date of meeting: 6™ October 2015

DEVOLUTION

Summary

This report sets out Norfolk’s ambition for and approach to the government’s
devolution proposals contained in the ‘Cites and Local Government
Devolution Bill’ currently before Parliament.

The approach which has been taken thus far in Norfolk is set out in the letter
‘Devolution — Letter of Intent’ and associated paper ‘The Norfolk Offer’
(Appendix 1) which has been submitted by all of Norfolk’s Council Leaders
and the Chairman of the New Anglia Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).

Norfolk Leaders were responding to an invitation for expressions of interest to
be submitted to government by 4™ September 2015. The Leaders have
expressed a clear view that devolution proposals should, if at all possible, be
based on the New Anglia LEP geography, i.e. for both Norfolk and Suffolk.

The initial submissions for both Norfolk and Suffolk have been well received in
government and civil servants have made it very clear that going forward
these two proposals would be greatly strengthened if they could be combined
into a single ‘devolution deal’.

Recommendation

Cabinet is recommended to:

1) Note and endorse the submission of the Norfolk Letter of Intent.

2) Endorse the proposal to progress a joint Norfolk and Suffolk devolution

deal.
3) Comment upon and support the proposed functions for inclusion in the

13




4)

5)

6)

devolution negotiations as outlined in Section 3 of the report.

To note that it will be a requirement that the Borough Council joins and
participates fully in a ‘Combined Authority’ for Norfolk and Suffolk in the
event that an attractive devolution agreement is reached.

Authorise the Leader to pursue negotiations on behalf of the Borough
Council to help to secure a devolution deal for Norfolk and Suffolk with
Government.

That a further report be brought forward on the matter for a decision to
be taken by Council.

Reason for Decision

To ensure that the Borough Council is able to play a full and active role in
responding to the Government’s devolution agenda, and to secure the most
attractive deal achievable for the residents and businesses of the Borough.

1.0

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Background

Following the General Election in May 2015, the new Government
emphasised its commitment to devolution by swiftly introducing the
Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill to Parliament on 28 May
2015.

Initially, the Government’s focus was on continuing the devolution of
powers and/or funding to large urban areas, particularly to the five
existing combined authorities. This included a devolution deal for the
Sheffield City Region and the Greater Manchester Health and Care Deal
that sees the authorities take control of £6 billion of health and social
care spending, overseen by a new statutory body from April 2016.

As support for devolution widened, the Government further announced
that it would not be confined to large urban areas. All areas were
encouraged to come forward with proposals for a devolution deal. As a
result, many areas across England have submitted or intend to submit
such proposals. An outline deal has already been concluded with
Cornwall, and other proposals are being developed across the country.

The Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill provides the legal
framework for such devolution. The Bill gives the Secretary of State the
necessary powers to agree bespoke deals with local areas.

As part of his Summer Budget on 8 July 2015, the Chancellor
announced that ‘significant’ devolution deals would have to be submitted
to the Government by 4 September 2015 if they were to inform and be
agreed by the Comprehensive Spending Review in November.

In order to maximise influence over devolution discussions with

Government, Leaders from all of Norfolk County, district, city and

borough councils agreed to submit an Expression of Interest to

Government by 4 September 2015. It was agreed this would emphasise
14




2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

Norfolk’s ambition for devolution, along with its credibility for delivery;
and signal that Norfolk is ready to begin negotiations with Government.
The Letter of Intent is attached as Appendix 1.

Democracy and Governance

Whilst there is a clear preference from the Chancellor and the Treasury
for devolved powers to be linked to the establishment of elected ‘metro
mayors’ to provide London style Leadership and accountability, there is
recognition that this model sits less well in shire areas. Nevertheless
there is an ‘entry level’ requirement for a Combined Authority, to be
established as a legal entity in its own right.

Within Norfolk and Suffolk the intention is to ensure that the design of
the Combined Authority incorporates a model of clear and democratically
elected governance which in turn reflects the nature of the distinct
economic and social geography of the two counties. This will
incorporate a form of double devolution whereby whilst some functions
will be managed at the combined authority board level, others will be
delegated to ‘clusters’ of districts.

All 16 authorities will be represented on the Combined Authority Board,
together with the LEP to reflect business interests.

Functions

The broad priority areas for Norfolk which we will seek to reflect in the
devolution arrangements will incorporate the following areas:-

Economic Development

Infrastructure & Physical Assets

Skills and Worklessness

Strategic Planning & Housing Delivery
Health & Social Care

These are seen as powerful ‘levers’ which will enable us to boost growth
and prosperity across New Anglia and help to both speed up and
potentially exceed the targets set in the New Anglia Strategic Economic
Plan.

Economic Growth & Productivity
o A New Anglia LEP productivity commission with a 100 day
challenge to examine the scale of the productivity gap and
establish the root causes of the problem.
o A network of rural enterprise zones with innovation and
improved productivity at their heart.

15



4.0

4.1

Coherent Planning & Housing

o A combined authority to provide a single vision to stimulate the
growth, overcome blockages and provide better integration and
efficiencies, with the appropriate cluster level democratic
governance to ensure delivery.

o Work with Government to identify new settlements, utilising
Homes and Communities Agency powers and resources to plan
and deliver.

o Strengthened compulsory purchase powers to accelerate
housing delivery.

Employment & Skills

o To work with Government on the roll-out of Universal Credit and
test new approaches to providing in work progression to support
raising incomes and reducing welfare dependency.

Physical Assets and Infrastructure

o A five year funding settlement for local transport schemes to
fund an integrated investment package to deliver our local
economic, housing and employment priorities. This will deliver
better value for money and greater connectivity through
integrated transport solutions.

o Direct influence over the new Greater Anglia rail franchise and
accelerate much needed improvements on the Norwich to
Liverpool Street (Norwich in 90) and King’s Lynn to Cambridge
King’s Cross lines.

Action on Flood Risk

o Responsibilities, and associated budgets and funding, currently
exercised by Environment Agency to transfer to the Combined
Authority to meet local priorities.

o Improved Health & Social Care

o Integrated commissioning to tackle the challenges facing
Norfolk’s health and social care offer.

Negotiating the Norfolk and Suffolk (New Anglia) Devolution Deal

It will be necessary, as a first step, to work quickly with our colleagues in
Suffolk to secure agreement as to which functions we wish to see
devolved to the proposed Combined Authority.

a) Both Norfolk and Suffolk’s Expressions of Interest were submitted to
Government on 4 September 2015 by the public sector Leaders (see
Appendix 1). These Expressions of Interest will form the basis for
negotiation of more detailed proposals with Government throughout
the autumn, with the expectation of some conclusions in 25
November 2015 Autumn Statement.

b) Once concluded these will then be subject to further discussion by

Full Council and the various appropriate decision making bodies of
Norfolk’s public sector partners.

16



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

c) Any specific requests to the Government for the devolution of
powers, responsibilities or funding from national level to local level
will be supported by business cases and/or cost benefit analysis to
demonstrate the benefits to Norfolk residents of any changes, and
advantages for central Government.

d) Such proposals will be subject to considerable further work and
negotiation. Changes to powers, responsibilities or funding
arrangements would require the approval of all constituent councils
and other public bodies.

Options Considered
There are in essence three options:-

. To respond positively to the first wave devolution opportunity (the
option chosen).

o To take no action. The effect of this option would be that it would
make it very difficult indeed for a Norfolk devolution deal to be
concluded as this would considerably weaken the coherence of a
Norfolk wide proposal. It would also deny the participating councils
the opportunity to secure enhanced influence and powers needed
to drive prosperity and growth.

o To respond at a later date. Whilst many councils have chosen to
delay responding to devolution opportunities, there is a
considerable amount of evidence that second wave City Deals
were less extensive than those agreed in the first wave, hence this
option was rejected.

Policy Implications

The Devolution agenda represents a significant reversal of decades of
centralisation in England and this represents an opportunity for local
government to secure new functions for the benefit of local people and
business.

Financial and Risk Implications

It is difficult to anticipate the resource implications for the Council prior to
any detailed negotiations with Government. The Treasury have stated,
however, that any devolution proposals need to be fiscally neutral.
There is a risk that by not entering into early negotiation with
Government centrally developed, inappropriate and ineffective solutions
could be imposed on the people of Norfolk and Suffolk.

Personnel Implications
There are no personnel implications for the Borough Council at this

stage.
17



9.0 Statutory Considerations
9.1 Provision for the creation of Combined Authorities and devolution

arrangements are included in the Cities and Local Government
Devolution Bill currently before parliament.

10.0 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
Attached as a background paper.

11.0 Declarations of Interest / Dispensations Granted
None.

12.0 Background Papers
e Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill
e Suffolk Devolution Expression of Interest

e New Anglia LEP Strategic Economic Plan

18



A !

N R - Boro - &, . . %
f‘:;:’ Broadland GREAT YARMOUTH Kingﬁynn‘& o vNorfolk County Council Fiona McDiarmid
\ s Dyreict cetnell G if BOROUGH counciL West Norfolk JENE/ 3 » clo NCC

Breckland . , County Hall
WY 555 NORWICH b Martineau Lane
NFVVANGLlA -—.j > | City Council & Som(f [Ex Norwich
for Norfolk and Suffolk NORTH Egr\{"‘vg}i—g.:ry, COUNCIL NR1 ZSG
!‘,',%ﬁ?u‘;!.f OF THE ARTS Universityof East Anglia
Via email NCC contact number: 0344 800 8020
XXX Textphone: 0344 800 8011
XXX Email: xxx@norfolk.gov.uk
XXX
4 September 2015
Your ref:
My ref: FMc/

To whom it may concern
Re: Devolution — Letter of Intent

We invite you to consider an exciting proposal that will further transform the economy of
much of East Anglia. It comes with the strong endorsement of the Councils in Norfolk
together with the New Anglia Local Enterprise Partnership and our universities. It conveys
our commitment to continue to work together to maximise the benefits of devolution for
businesses and communities Our proposals in summary are to:

improve productivity, drive growth and improve housing delivery
invest in transport and improve infrastructure

transform skills and employment

transform the delivery of health and social care

These represent a significant commitment to achieve the local/national dividend desired
through devolution and to rebalance the local economy.

Building on the Norwich & Ipswich City Deals we will develop the existing strong
relationships which we have created with private and public sector partners through the
New Anglia LEP and develop further Enterprise Zones focused on agri-tech, food and
health and digital ICT. We will also complete our commitment to provide Superfast
Broadband to 100% of our premises by 2020,

We are proud of our collaboration which has led to two Round 2 City Deals: our Enterprise
Zone, covering Great Yarmouth and Lowestoft, has exceeded job creation targets; our
Growth Hub has blazed the trail for simplified and streamlined support for businesses and
our Growing Business Fund has created more than 1,000 new jobs and levered in £60m in
private sector investment.

Productivity

At the heart of our collaboration would be a Productivity Commission, led by the private
sector and the New Anglia LEP which will examine the root causes of the productivity gap
in Suffolk and Norfolk and make positive recommendations on how we can tackle these
issues head on.

Rural Issues

Our productivity commission will incorporatg a 10 point rural productivity plan for boosting
productivity in the two counties, in support of the national programme, to address the
challenges faced by businesses and local communities in rural and isolated areas.



Financing Infrastructure Investments
A key role for the LEP in a combined authority would be to create investable investment
and infrastructure opportunities in a way that levers-in private finance, perhaps from
individuals, pension funds or sovereign wealth without relying exclusively on the UK
Government for funding.

Strategic Connections to Neighbouring Areas

Whilst our immediate focus is Norfolk we see strengthening connections, both physical
and economic, to Suffolk and further still to Cambridgeshire and our neighbouring LEP as
key to unlocking the whole area’s economic potential, especially in respect of strategic
transport provision.

Strategic Transport

We have welcomed and supported government investment in transport infrastructure,
including the A11, A47 and A14, but we are ambitious for more. We see the devolution of
funding for investment in our roads infrastructure as essential to enable the further
development of an integrated, modern transport system that would be the key to
developing employment and housing sites across the counties. In this respect we are
committed to looking outside our boundaries to areas such as Cambridgeshire and beyond
to deliver benefits for the wider region. An effective transport system is the lifeblood of our
rural area.

We also want greater local influence over planned improvements to the Strategic Road
Network and greater local engagement and influence over the development and operation
of the Greater Anglia Rail franchise. We believe this will ensure that government and
private sector investments provide better value for money and are focussed strongly on
making East Anglia a more attractive place to start up, locate and grow business.

Our “Norwich in 90" rail campaign has brought together private and public sector partners
around a compelling business plan to support investment and growth and we have
established effective delivery through the Local Transport Body and Skills Board. Not only
will such infrastructure unlock business and housing investment throughout East it will also
ensure the port of Felixstowe, the UK's busiest container port, continues to grow and
contribute to UK economy.

Supporting Business Growth

Building on the success of our Growth Programme, we will enhance the Growth Hub which
is already exceeding ambitious performance targets. This will continue to provide a single
point of contact for business support. By seeking devolution of national support schemes,
including UKTI, MAS and Growth Accelerator this will ensure that businesses have the
support they need to help them grow, compete and win in the global marketplace.

Co-operation amongst Key Partners

All the Norfolk and Suffolk Councils have played a major role in the acknowledged success
of New Anglia LEP, judged to be one of the most successful in England. This is testament
to the strong and enduring collaboration and leadership from private and public sector
organisations across Norfolk & Suffolk. We all want this to continue and strengthen so that
together we can release the further potential that exists, particularly on growth and in
tackling the productivity challenge.

Our submissions to the Comprehensive Spending Review on the wider opportunities
presented by devolution represent the respective positions of the authorities. We believe
that devolution presents a once in a generation opportunity for public service reform and
improved collaborative working, not just on growth and productivity, but the range of
opportunities highlighted above. Working with ater partners to improve health economies



is critical to delivering sustainable public services and we are committed to working with
our partners to make the most of the opportunity offered by devolution to do so.

Support for Key Industry Sectors

Focusing on growth, we know the East Anglian economy, already a net contributor to the
Exchequer, has the potential to grow faster, with strengths in key sectors such as agri-
tech, energy, ports & logistics and the digital economy. Linking Greater Cambridge and
Greater Norwich with their two world-class universities and research facilities with the A11
growth corridor should further accelerate jobs and growth.

Our innovation and research pedigree is world class, with Norwich Research Park (NRP),
hosting the Institute of Food Research, The Genome Analysis Centre (TGAC), The
Sainsbury Laboratory and The John Innes Centre. We have the University of East Anglia
(UEA) with its established record across disciplines, and the Norwich University of the Arts’
international reputation.

In Suffolk, the University Campus Suffolk, opened in 2007 has grown quickly and is
applying for Taught Degree Awarding Powers currently. In addition our private sector
includes Adastral Park, home to BT’s global research facility and other tech companies
and the Hethel Engineering Centre, a hub for innovation.

Growth in the IT and Digital sector supported by Norwich University of the Arts (NUA),
presents a huge opportunity for East Anglia, even more so when you factor in collaboration
with Cambridgeshire and the Greater Cambridgeshire and Greater Peterborough LEP.
Close to mainland Europe and the wider South East we want East Anglia to be a centre for
global business, offering high value, secure and sustainable jobs to everyone who lives
there.

Employment & Skills :

We are already making good progress. 88% of 18-24 year olds are in work or education
and the number of young Job Seekers has fallen by almost 40% in the last 12 months.
However, 2,675 16-24 year olds remain on Job Seekers Allowance (JSA), 2,770 on
Employment Support Allowance and the rate of youth unemployment in our most deprived
towns and some rural areas is still above regional and national average. With the help of
Government, we will deliver the national Youth Obligation through a local promise that all
our 14-24 year olds will receive the personal support they need to make a successful
transition into post-16 learning, get an apprenticeship, work experience or a job within
three months of leaving education or employment. This is our Youth Pledge.

Democracy & Governance

We appreciate the need for clear and democratically accountable governance which in
turn recognises and reflects the nature of the distinct economic and social geographies
within a larger Combined Authority based on clusters of Districts or City Deal geography.
This proposal will incorporate clear, decisive and accountable decision making at the
geography that best matches effective local delivery

We will explore new forms of governance, based around a Combined Authority model,
customised for Norfolk, focused on growth and productivity and our other headline
proposals. Suffolk is committed to discussing arrangements with Norfolk and the New
Anglia LEP as they evolve further. We will happily enter into discussion about governance
arrangements which cross our county borders.

Meaningful Double Devolution

Built into a combined authority will be the importance of a meaningful double devolution
approach based on district clusters or City Deal areas, especially in respect of strategic
planning and housing delivery. The Greater Norwich partnership is a prime example of
how this can work successfully. 1



This way we can build on the strengths of the New Anglia LEP Board, its active
collaborations across public and private sectors, the universities and the LEP Sector

Groups.

We are confident that you will see these proposals as a clear commitment to build on what
we have achieved already, to strengthen the economy of East Anglia and recognise that
all the councils in the New Anglia LEP area are ambitious not just to support this growth,
but to exploit the wider opportunities presented by devolution for the benefit of our

communities and the country.

We can move at pace and look forward to a positive response to this expression of
interest. We are committed to working with you to meet the Spending Review deadline.

Yours sincerely

T

Clir Nick Daubney

Leader - Borough Council of
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk and
Chair of Norfolk Leaders

ke &\\w\m\@\ |

Professor David Richardson
Vice-Chancellor - UEA

Clir Andrew Proctor
Leader — Broadland District
Council

»AM/\K&J%

Clir Alan Waters
Leader — Norwich City Council

Mark Pendlington
Chair - LEP

ﬂL LA
@ -

Professor John Last
Vice-Chancellor - NUA

Clir Graham Plant
Leader — Gt Yarmouth Borough
Council

DL

Clir John Fuller
Leader — South Norfolk Council

22

Clir George Nobbs
Leader — Norfolk County
Council

ZLS A

Clir Michael Wassell
Leader — Breckland District
Council

Clir Tom Fitzpatrick
Leader — North Norfolk
District Council



"SHY 8y} Jo AysisAlun yoimiop Jnyssaoons Ajybiy ey} ‘AjisieAiun puooas 1no Aq pajjens aIe ‘sio}oss aAjealo pue

[enbip sy} 8yl ‘Ymolb Jo seale mau pue ‘pasiubosal AjJeUOBUISIUI SI YDIYM J0}08S |elouBUly POIHISISAID PUB paysige}sa-||am e Yiog

aney s\ jseo) Abisu3 usaln) ano suidiepun ‘Jopluod ABojouyss] ||y ay) Buoje Buidojensp ABojouyos) Bulisauibua ssejd pHOM
Aq papoddns ‘Aisnpur puim a1oysyo pue seb ay | ‘Buunjoenuew Isijeads Ul pue ‘yosessal oaj}-1y Joj 81juad plom e si Junod sy |

"‘abueyo ajewlo pue Ajunoss ABiaua ‘uononpoud
pooj jo sabusjieys |eqo|b Jolew ay Buipjoe) jo pesy ay) Je Aunoo ay} Ul UoBAOUUI UM ABPO) UBY) 9N} 910W USSJ JOASU SeY SIY |

‘Juswaebeuew |ejuswuolAUS pue ssaulsng-Libe
Ul JuswsoueApe |edjBojouyos) pue uoeAouul Yybnoiy) ‘A1unod sy} J0 ymolb J1LOUOIS By} 0} PAINQLIUCD SBLINJUSD 10} Sey |OHON

‘puohaq pue yjopoN ul Ajuadsolid pue ymoub jo soed sy aeisjsooe
OM MOY UO JUSWILIBA0D Yym suoissnasip uibaq o} juem am pue ssao0id e Jo Hejs ay) yonw AJsA S| Juajul JO Juswalels siy] e

23

"L LV pajlenp Aimau ay} 0} S)UeY) ‘9]|qISS800. al0W USAS MouU
‘sisuped uel|Buy 1se3 dU0}SIY IO ‘BuysebpLquien yum syul| oi169jeu)s ansind osje [m ap 18y} dojs J,Useop uoique JNQ e

. "HoynS yiim Buppom ul pabebus Ajaaijoe ale am
PUE Y|OjNg pue Y|OHON JO S8)junod paulquiod a8y} Jo Julidjoo) 437 Jno uo paseq ‘suoijdo ajeos Jobie| a10|dxe 0} usay ale 9\ o

"UOIMION J8}ealn) S yons S)ol)sIp JO SI8ISN|O UO SN0} [[IM SUOKNjOS MaN Ajaonpoid
asealou| 0} s80.04 Buluiol sisuped Ag paureb aq ueod jey) yonw s 818y} PUE YjOHON J0) UOIINJOASP J3jealb JUBM B\ e

ssauisnq pue sqol anjea ybiy ui ymmoib syeard pue saiiunuoddo Jno uo esiejdes o) Alessasau Hoddns ayj 106 am
|BHA s13] “AInjuso §s1.Z 8y} ul Jopes) ojwouooe eqo|b e aq o} ysnd panuiRuod s )N 8y} 0} jeJuswepun) si Y|oLoN snosadsoidy e

49330 J|o}10N 2y £




' The Norfolk Offer

As Leaders, we want to build upon our current success and reap the benefits that devolution could offer our communities.

The county areas of Norfolk and Suffolk, with their centuries of common interest and culture, represent the core element of a
combined authority, working with our Universities and New Anglia Local Enterprise Partnership. The work of the LEP has been
underpinned by the support of local authorities across Norfolk and Suffolk and city deals in Greater Norwich and Ipswich.

Our immediate focus is Norfolk but we see strengthening connections, both physical and economic, to Cambridgeshire and our
neighbouring LEP as key to unlocking our area’s economic potential.

Our Devolution Deal

Devolution - initially with Suffolk and the New Anglia LEP — will help us realise our vision for a 21st century economy. Government

has recognised the potential of Norfolk, with welcome investments in key infrastructure including the A11, NDR and A47 and the
Norwich Research Park. But we are ambitious for more.

With greater devolution we could deliver:

Economic Growth & Productivity

e A new Anglia LEP productivity commission with a 100 day challenge to examine the scale of the productivity gap and
establish the root causes of the problem.

e A network of rural enterprise zones with innovation and improved productivity at their heart.
Coherent Planning & Housing

e A combined authority to provide a single vision to stimulate the growth, overcome blockages and provide better integration
and efficiencies, with the appropriate cluster level democratic governance to ensure delivery.

e Work with Government to identify new settlements, utilising Homes and Communities Agency powers and resources to plan
and deliver. :

e Strengthened compulsory purchase powers to accelerate housing delivery.

24




Jobuey [euibuo sy jo pesye |jem ymoib pue sqol BulsAljep ‘Anunod auy ui |njsseoons

1SOW 8y Jo sUo 8q 0) palapisuod si auoz astidisju] Jloy) pue (3409) Buussuibuz sjgemeusy sioysyQ 1oy saljua) |euoneu xis
9} Jo suo se pasjubooal Apeaufe ale yojsemo] pue YINOWLEA jeals) ‘Jse7 Jed 8y} JO apIsino Usas WOP|as 3|eos B Uo juswdojaAap
8inonljselyul si sly| "sauigqin} 000} punoie asudwod Ajpjewn)n |Im ‘yseon AB1au3z usaio ino Yo pajenys ‘Aelly elbuy jseg

9y ‘uoipod }sabie| ey} Jej Aq sjuasaid uiseq eeg YUON ursynog ayj pue 0zZoz Aq MN oY} punole pauueld s| JUSW)SBAUI JO UGQZF
Punoly "ssjqemaual aoysyo Ajjejoadss ‘selysnpul ABisua ABojouyos) mau 1o} 21)ud0 e awooaq 0) ymouib pides sy padjay sey siy|
'S1edh 0G 10} BOS YHON UIBYINOS ay) Ul Jojoas seb PUe |i0 8y} padinas Buiney ‘Ayunos ABisus aloysyo Arewud s pue|busg si YjOUON

-abpuquien spJemo} JoplLoo
L1V 8u3 Buoje pue uuAT sbury ul ymoB wouy eusjod jeuonippe osje si 818y} pue ‘eiuso ABisus paysijge}se ue si yinouueA

Jea19 ‘ymolb juswAhojdws pue Buisnoy Joj snooy e si pue YIOHON JO YAD 8U} JO %06 Sjuasaidal eaje YoIMION Jajeals) ay |
ymoub 1o} suonepunod

4840 aled [e100s pue yjleay sjjopoN Buloey ssbusjieyo ay) apjoe) 0} Buiuoissiwwos pajeibaju] e
ale) |eros @ yjesH panroidw] e
"saljioud |e20| }9aw 0} Ajoyiny pauiquion)
9U} 0} Jajsuel) 0} Aousbyy Juswuoliaug Aq pesiosexs Ajuaiind ‘Buipunj pue sjebpnq pajeloosse pue ‘sapjiqisuodsey e
3SIY pPoo|4 uo uondYy
'saul| ssou1) s,bury ebpuqwed oy uuk s Bury pue (06 ul yoimioN) 1984 [0odiaar
0} YOIMION 8 uo sjusuanoldll papasu yonui ajelajadde pue asiyduel) el eljfuy I3jeals) Mau 8y} JoA0 Sousnjul 108l e
‘suonnjos podsuel) pajelbajul
ybnouy; Ayaizosuuos Jeyealb pue Asuow 10} anjeA Japaq JaAliep |im siy | sepuoud juswAoidwse pue Buisnoy ‘olwouods
[B00] N0 Janijop 0} abexoed jJusunsanul pajelbajul ue puny o} Sawiayds podsuey) [eoo| 1o} Juswsiyes Buipuny Jeak oAy e
alnjonJjselju| pue sjassy |edisAyd
‘Aouspuadap aiejjem Buronpas pue sewooul Buisiel yoddns
0} uoissaiboid siom ui Buipinoid 0} seyoeoidde mau jsa) PUE JIP31J |ESISAIUN JO JNO-||01 Y} UO JUSWIUISAOS) UM YIOM O] e
SIS 9 Juswihojdwg

25

43110 JiI0}.10N au.L f




M The Norfolk Offer

Car maker Lotus is synonymous with Norfolk. There is now a high tech cluster of businesses in this area, building on the Lotus
heritage and attracting further new high performance technology businesses to start up. This is the heart of the A11 Technology
Corridor, where hundreds of companies with links to the automotive and motorsports sector are based. We have available space
and plans to create significant numbers of new high performance engineering jobs.

Norwich Research Park (NRP), Home to Europe's largest concentration of agri-tech scientists, is turning world class science into
world class jobs. It houses the Institute of Food Research, The Genome Analysis Centre (TGAC), The Sainsbury Laboratory, The
John Innes Centre and the University of East Anglia (UEA). It is also a globally renowned centre for the study of climate change,
due to the close association between the Tyndall Centre and the Climatic Research Unit at UEA. This is coupled with leading edge
research at UEA through the Energy Materials Laboratory. The Park has superb business incubation facilities — the NRP
Innovation Centre, the Bio Incubator, the new Centrum building and the unique Enterprise Centre at the UEA - Britain’s greenest
building. New companies benefit from the cluster effect of specialist researchers and the NRP has 52ha of development land, with
the Greater Norwich City Deal set to create 7,000 jobs there by 2031.

The 200 year old Norwich financial services cluster —which includes the largest concentration of insurance business in the UK
outside of London - and new hi- tech industries (including Norwich Tech City), are both ideally placed to benefit from the success of
London and Cambridge. The emerging Centre for Advanced Knowledge Engineering campus which is being developed by Aventa
Capital Partners at Downham Market in the west of the county is a case in point, with expectations of more than 4,000 new jobs in
the new & rapidly growing data analytics sector.

As well as these unique facilities, Norfolk has two further attributes that can support rapid economic growth. It has an ambitious
public service - in local government, higher education and health services - that supports innovation and takes pride in providing

space for new businesses to grow. We work closely to both support fledgling business and get out of their way when they are
ready to fly.

And, importantly, Norfolk also has the room to grow. Situated less than 100 miles from the nation’s capital (albeit with a number of

infrastructure projects still necessary to capitalise on this proximity), we have space for new business and new homes and we are
committed to creating the business growth, jobs and housing needed to achieve that growth.

(]
N




gjIBuy 3583 Jo Aisieniun UDNNDD

SLHY IHL 40
AOHONHIDS & s i
<+ @Mm_ HOIMHON

¥4 MDA LaISID o - ) € M|0JON 1SBMm o now (7 s UDHOl
[Puno) Ao @ WI0J40N Vit ot [DUnoD) AQuno") Y]OJION > . % PUUKISBun  HINOWHVA V34D @, e 1t S

e L TEY T — %

1saId)ul Jo uoissaidxa siy} 0} asuodsal aAlISod B 0} pIemIo) 30O| pue aoed Je aAOW UBD apA

27

‘Umolb jo Aisnijap sy} 0) soueuIanob [eoo] sjeudoidde apinoid |im yoeoidde

uolnjoAap sjgnop |njbuluesiu iy “ease [eni/ueqin paxiw Jno pue YoIMION JsjeaiB jo souepodw ay) sposyal yoiym Ajuoyjne
paulquioo B ojul jing ‘Buiyew uolsioep a|gejunNosoe pue ‘OnIS|oap les|o sjelodiooul o} Ay si siy) “AydeiBosb [ejoos o1Wwou0D
N0 JO Binjeu 3y spos)jal pue sasiubooal Yyolym aoueulanob s|qejunoooe Alleoyeloowsp pue Jesjo 1oy pseu ay) ssiubooas app

'SeRlUNWIWOD |ein) s|qeule)sns pue paoueleq aI0W JOAIISP PINom

SIyL "8sn swoy Aepijoy 1o puooes uey) Jaypel ‘ssauIsnq o} sbuipjing |einynoube jo uoisiaAUOD ybnouy; seale |eins ul Juswdojonsp
sseulsnq o} seyoeoidde meu Buidojansp pue ‘Buiddoys poseq jaulsiul yum sjadwod o} sawiwelfoid umo) Joxlew [njssasons

Jo Juswidojansp ‘saoinies [elourul pue algnd Auew J0 Uojesijenusd ‘sepiunpoddo Bujuiesy pue uoleonpe Buissasoe ajdoad BunoA
Aq paoe; swajqo.d apnjoul pjnos padojensp aq Jybiw suonn|os [eag) 9IBYM JO sojdwiex] ‘seale paje|os] Pue [Bini Ul SARIUNWLLIOD
[BOO] pue sessaulisng Aq paoe; sabus|eyo ayj ssaippe o} ‘awwelboid [euoneu ay} jo poddns uj ‘saljunod omy |y} 1o} ue|d
Ajnonpoud jeiny |esol e dojenap o} pazies aq PInoys saiunpoddo ‘Yloyng pue yjouoN Joj Juswaaibe uonnjoAsp Aue jo ped sy

19130 Mio3 10N sy L [



DRAFT for Norfolk & Suffolk Leaders and BIS/CLG meeting 22"¢ September 2015

1) Devolution Deal for Growth in Norfolk and Suffolk

Devolution offers an exciting opportunity for greater local decision making and influence to
power economic growth and productivity and unlock the potential of Norfolk and Suffolk. The
two counties have the scale, ambition and leadership to maximise the opportunities offered
by additional freedoms and responsibilities. We also have the potential to grow our economy
faster, with strengths in key sectors such as agri-tech, food & health, energy and the digital
economy.

Norfolk and Suffolk also bring geographic and economic scale and clout, creating an
economic entity on a similar scale as City Regions such as Liverpool and Sheffield, with a
much faster growing population. Our proposals bring a strong voice for our largest economic
centres of Greater Norwich and Ipswich, while also reflecting the role of our other major
towns and their economies, our market towns and rural areas.

Our strengths are diverse and powerful:

e National hubs for key business sectors, eg financial industries, that need to be nurtured to
become magnets for global inward investment

e An all-energy coast at the centre of the world’s largest market for offshore wind

e Globally-leading research in life sciences and agri-tech, and pioneering technical
innovations in ICT research and development.

e The UK's busiest container port, in Felixstowe
e A fast-growing creative digital sector, with Norwich recently recognised by Tech City UK
e Market-leading food and drink producers

e Ouir first-class cultural heritage attractions mean tourism is worth £4.6bn annually across
Norfolk and Suffolk.

The economies and sector strengths of our two counties are similar, and are stronger by
working together - we are proof that cross border collaboration can work. We already have
an Enterprise Zone with sites in both counties, an innovative and effective Clinical
Commissioning Group across Gt Yarmouth and Waveney, two City Deals for Norwich and
Ipswich, a Local Transport Body and Skills Board led by the LEP, both County Councils and
business.

Our Enterprise Zone in Great Yarmouth and Lowestoft has consistently been one of the
country’s best performing zones, creating more than 1,300 jobs by May 2015 and £29m of
private sector investment. We were the first EZ to introduce Local Development Orders on all
our sites.

However, our ambitions have often been hampered by a lack of ability to influence the
economic levers which accelerate the pace of growth. Our employment figures are among
the best in the country, but our skills and productivity levels are below the national average.
We need to tackle this problem head on, if we are to shift our economy to the next gear and
compete and win on a global stage.

Growing the economy and improving productivity, underpinned by public service reform
(particularly around the integration of health, care and safety), means that we feel devolution
provides a framework to improve the opportunities and life chances for the people of Norfolk
and Suffolk.

We want to work more effectively together with Government to achieve a radically re-set
relationship between central and local public services and local people. One that is enabling

28 1]5



and responsible; one that is adaptable and progressive and one that works in driving growth,
enabling opportunity and delivering a more efficient public sector that influences better
outcomes.

2) For Growth, the Norfolk and Suffolk devolution deal is focused on:
a) Economic Growth & Productivity - For example, building on the existing architecture to:

i) Develop a network of rural Enterprise Zones focussed on: agri-tech, food
and health and digital economy that link our beacons of innovation Norwich
Research Park and Adastral Park in Ipswich;

i) Better connecting our universities with our businesses to drive innovation
and productivity

i) Enhance the New Anglia Growth Hub;
iv) Create a joined up approach to attract inward investment;

v) Create a Productivity Commission to help tackle root causes of our
productivity gap

vi) Devolve decision making over EU funding programmes

b) Physical Assets & Infrastructure - For example:

i) Devolution of funding and decision making for investment in a modern
transport system with a secure future, based on local economic priorities
that will develop employment and housing sites across the two counties

i) Offering a single integrated transport strategy for Norfolk and Suffolk, in
return, for greater certainty and influence over transport funding (with a 5-10
year settlement for local transport schemes). (powers to manage the local
road network

iii) Greater influence over the rail franchise and capital programme

iv) Shaping and influencing the priorities for electricity and water supply
investment, to support key locations in anticipation of planned growth

v) Roll out of the city-based broadband connectivity voucher system to SMEs
in rural areas

vi) Working with Government to tackle the challenge of poor mobile network
coverage in both counties

c¢) Employment & Skills — ensuring that our residents are able to use the full potential of their
skills in driving productivity and growth. For example by:

i) Designing a new local employment service that helps people to progress
into work and reduces dependency on benefits and can deliver Universal
Credit

ii) Devolved responsibility for the Apprenticeship Grant and successor
schemes

iif) Co-commissioning with Government all post 16 education and skills
provision and the next round of the Work Programme

29 2|5



iv) As part of the New Anglia Youth Pledge deliver the Youth obligation building
on the MyGo service (first established in Ipswich as part of its City Deal)
financed through a shared investment model with government

v) Extend the adult loan system to include 19-23 year olds within the existing
funding envelope so that adults skills training is open to all who can benefit

d) Coherent Planning & Housing — developing a housing offer that maximises growth and
better supports people’s health and wellbeing by:

i) Creating a joined up Strategic Plan which aligns and integrates all the
different strategies, supported by local delivery plans — so that decision
making on developments can be made closer to the communities they are
part of

ii) Establishing an Investment Fund for Growth, to drive infrastructure to
support growth and move money quickly to where it's needed.

iif) Working with Government to identify new settlements/garden cities in
conjunction with the Homes and Community Agency, using its powers and
resources to plan and deliver

iv) Certainty over New Homes Bonus allocations to allow increased borrowing
and infrastructure investment

v) Influence over the investment plans of significant utilities — currently
investment in utilities is often out of step with and holding back both local
employment and housing developments with no mechanism for local
engagement or influence

vi) Greater CPO powers to overcome barriers to land assembly, tackling stalled
sites and challenging land banking

vii) Becoming a “Planning Reform Pathfinder” to work government and the
sector to radically re-think the local plan process to maintain an up to date
land supply, provide certainty for developers and reduce the necessity for
systematic local plan reviews.

e) Action on Flood Risk — for example by:

i) Creating a fully integrated approach to flood and coastal management in
order to deliver additional economic growth (and address the fact that 1 in 5
Norfolk properties are at risk of flooding)

ii) Devolution of the flood and coastal erosion risk management (FCERM)
functions in Norfolk and Suffolk

iii) Increased support from government for a more locally joined up approach to
flood management and coastal defences

f) Finance — We want to establish a different relationship with Government, where greater
local autonomy creates a system that is more locally self-sufficient than reliant on central
grants. This should be enabled by:

i) More flexibility to deliver our ambitions and manage the risks we are taking
on.

i) Exploring Business Rate retention options
30 3|5



iif) First rights on central government estates and local autonomy over public
sector estates (including NHS) to unlock sites for employment and housing
as well as smarter use of public assets

3) For Wider Public Service Reform the devolution deal for Norfolk and Suffolk will
focus on:

a) Education — it is vital that young people have access to excellent education and
training to help them realise their ambitions and be well equipped to be successful
adults. We are seeking a long term devolution programme delivered in
partnership with government that will use every possible lever to raise education
standards by:

i) Flexibility to agree local priorities with the Regional Schools Commissioner
regarding effective school performance for all children

i) Greater freedoms to dispose of surplus school sites (including playing fields)
so we can reinvest the capital receipts to secure enough school places in
our growing communities.

iii) Flexibility to set local policies for school transport and the power to require a
financial contribution where changes to school times/term dates result in
increased transport costs so we can meet our rural challenges and prioritise
vulnerable and low income families.

iv) An extension in the scope of the proposed Post-16 Area Review process to
include school sixth form provision to enable us to strengthen our A’ Level
offer in the context of greater demand for STEM skills and diminishing
resources/rurality.

b) Health, Care and Safety — we want people to be able to live as healthily, safely
and independently as possible for as long as possible and if needed, that they
receive early and joined up public sector support. To do this, we need the
following to be different:

i) Devolved multi-year settlements for health, care and safety

i) Freedom from centrally prescribed performance reporting and freedom to
set unified, locally appropriate, outcomes based measures across the
system and negotiate with national inspectorates and regulators.

iii) Local control over local public service estates and capital assets, including
NHS and police to unlock assets across Suffolk’s public services.

iv) Explicit and specific support from Government departments that provides
mandated authority from Whitehall to the local public sector.

v) More local control over skills funding to enable better, joined up workforce
development and attract the best health, care and teaching professionals
also boosting our economy

vi) Flexibilities to support better integrated IT across public sector organisations

Public Sector reform is an essential element of our Devolution Deal and will need to be
progressed by the two counties, either together or separately as circumstances
dictate.

31 4|5



Subsidiarity and ‘Double Devolution’

At the heart of our devolution proposal is the principle of subsidiarity — the devolution of
powers and decision making to the most appropriate level of government and geographic
area. The importance of meaningful double devolution based on District Council, district
clusters and pairings or City Deal areas will be addressed in the development of the
arrangements for the Combined Authority.

The content of the double devolution will be appropriate to local county circumstances and
each area will look at specific powers, decision making and funding streams which could be
addressed. This work will commence now and proceed in parallel with the work on growth
and wider public sector reform.

32 5|5



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	9a Devolution
	App 1 Devolution letter of intent, 06/10/2015 Cabinet
	Devolution Appendix, 06/10/2015 Cabinet


